
 

 
 
 

TO:        JAMES L. APP, CITY MANAGER 
 
FROM:     BOB LATA, COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR 
 
SUBJECT:    PROPOSALS REGARDING CITY PARKING LOT, 12th STREET 
 
DATE:       NOVEMBER 15, 2005 
 
 
 
Needs: For the City Council to provide policy direction and the Redevelopment 

Agency to consider authorizing preparation of an Exclusive Negotiation 
Agreement and to work exclusively with persons seeking to redevelop a 
Downtown City parking lot, based on the premise of preserving an equivalent 
number of public parking spaces. 

 
Facts: 1. The City’s General Plan and Economic Development Strategy, as 

well as the Paso Robles Redevelopment Plan, encourage mixed-use 
development and foster a compact, pedestrian-oriented Downtown 
area. Accommodating projects that incorporate combinations of 
commercial, office and residential land uses would be consistent with 
this policy direction. 

 
 2. The City/Agency received unsolicited proposals for the use of City-

owned property located on the north side of 12th Street between 
Spring and Park Streets. The subject property is a city-owned public 
parking lot on two parcels (APN No. 009-042-014, 015) that currently 
accommodates twenty (20) less-than-code-standard off-street parking 
spaces, including two spaces for the physically disabled. 

 
 3. In order to explore the potential uses of the existing parking lot, the 

City/Agency provided an opportunity for all interested parties to 
submit proposals for the development of the property in a manner that 
would preserve an equivalent number of off-street public parking 
spaces. 

 
 4. Copies of a Request for Proposals (RFP) were distributed to interested 

parties, a notice of the availability of an RFP was mailed to all 
property owners within a 300 foot radius of the subject parking lot, 
and a public notice regarding the RFP was published. A copy of the 
RFP is attached. 

 



 

 
 
 

 5. Two proposals were received in response to the RFP. Copies of both 
proposals are attached. 

 
 6. Based on the proposals received, it is suggested that the City / 

Redevelopment Agency consider authorizing an Agreement for an 
exclusive right to negotiate with 729 Twelfth Street Partners, LLC, 
for the potential sale of the City’s parking lot, contingent upon 
preserving an equivalent number of public parking spaces and 
conforming with the terms of a yet-to-be-negotiated Disposition and 
Development Agreement (DDA). 

Analysis 
and 
Conclusion: The purpose and intent of requesting proposals was to explore options which 

may lead to a more effective use of city-owned property while still 
maintaining public parking. By requesting proposals for the possible 
redevelopment of the City owned parking lot the City / Redevelopment 
Agency was not committed to entering into a sales agreement. 

 
 In a one-page proposal, James Enloe indicates his intent to preserve the 

existing City parking lot, enclose it, and add as many as four apartment units 
above. He also suggests that offices could be constructed on the second floor 
of the building. There are no indications of supplemental parking being 
provided. There are also no schematic plans for any proposed building, and 
no demonstration of how a building could be constructed and still preserve 
the public parking spaces (which are currently substandard in terms of size). 

 
 The second proposal, from 729 Twelfth Street Partners, LLC, would preserve 

the 20 public parking spaces and add six more on-site parking spaces. The 
plans reflect that all of the provided parking spaces would be consistent with 
current code specifications. The mixed-use development proposal provides 
retail, restaurant, office and residential land uses. Since the LLC owns the 
adjacent property, there will be a more effective use of land resulting in a 
fifty percent larger building footprint (the City’s 50 by 140 foot property plus 
redevelopment of an adjacent 25 by 140 foot parcel). The proposal provides 
detailing of each floor of the proposed building, including a building 
elevation that demonstrates architectural compatibility with other downtown 
structures. The proposal also details the square footage of the respective land 
uses.   

 
 To the extent that either new development would create additional demand 

for public parking, it is anticipated that the project would be required to pay 
an “in lieu” parking fee, the amount of which is to be determined prior to 
approval of any related development project. 



 

 
 
 

 
 The City Council’s ad hoc committee for Downtown Parking and Circulation, 

consisting of Council members Picanco and Strong, has reviewed the two 
proposals for purchase of the City parking lot.  

 
 The committee’s recommendation is to direct staff to express the City’s 

appreciation for the proposal by James Enloe but to indicate that his proposal 
does not provide the same level of detail and potential public and private 
improvements as contained in the 729 Twelfth Street Partners, LLC proposal.  

 
 The ad hoc Committee recommends that the Redevelopment Agency authorize 

staff to take the described steps to work with the 729 Twelfth Street Partners, 
LLC to process their proposal through both the entitlement process and  to 
negotiate the terms of a DDA. 

 
 The following steps are a suggested response to the proposal of 729 Twelfth 

Street Partners, LLC: 
 

a. Seek proposals for an appraisal of the value of the City parking lot 
(Requests for Proposals have been sent to four appraisers). A staff 
report on the proposed appraisals will be presented to the City Council 
at a future date. 

 
b. Schedule Redevelopment Agency review of the proposals received and 

authorize staff and the Agency Counsel to formulate a Draft Exclusive 
Negotiation Agreement to enter into an exclusive right to negotiate with 
729 Twelfth Street Partners, LLC. (The subject of this staff report.) 

 
c. Advise 729 Twelfth Street Partners, LLC that they may, at their own 

risk and cost, file for Development Plan consideration by the Planning 
Commission. Approval of a Development Plan by the Planning 
Commission (or, upon appeal, the City Council) would be a 
prerequisite to City Council / Redevelopment Agency consideration 
of potential sale of the parking lot. 

 
d. Parallel with the entitlement application process, City staff will 

review the proposal by 729 Twelfth Street Partners, LLC and confer 
with the City Council’s ad hoc Committee / City Council / 
Redevelopment Agency. Based on direction from the ad hoc 
Committee and City Council / Redevelopment Agency, appropriate 
actions by the City / Agency will be considered. 

 



 

 
 
 

e. No sale of property to any private party would occur until the 
Redevelopment Agency has completed the process of negotiating a 
Disposition and Development Agreement ("DDA"), and until all of 
the terms and conditions set forth in the DDA for conveyance of the 
property have been satisfied.  Under the Community Redevelopment 
Law, the DDA will be subject to the approval of both the City 
Council and the Redevelopment Agency after a noticed public 
hearing. Further, sale would be contingent upon the project receiving 
normal entitlement/approvals pursuant to the standard private 
development application/review/approval process. 

 
 The purpose and intent of the Exclusive Negotiation Agreement would be to 

negotiate a DDA that would contain the terms and conditions for the sale of the 
City parking lot and development of that property in conjunction with the 
adjacent property owned by the developer.   . 

 
Policy 
Reference: General Plan; Economic Development Strategy; Redevelopment Plan 
 
Fiscal 
Impact: Successful redevelopment of the subject property would continue revitalization 

of the Downtown Area, potentially resulting in positive fiscal impacts, 
including the generation of additional tax increments for the Redevelopment 
Agency. The City’s requirement for participation in a Community Facilities 
District for new residential development would off-set increased services 
demands related to new residential units. It is anticipated that an “in lieu” fee 
would be required to address parking demand in excess of what is being 
provided on-site and that the in lieu fee revenue would be set aside in an 
account that would be used to create additional parking spaces in the 
downtown area. 

 
Options: 
 
 CITY COUNCIL ACTION: 
 
 a. Direct staff and the City Attorney to take the steps necessary to work 

with the 729 Twelfth Street Partners, LLC to process consideration of 
their proposal, including related administrative steps and normal 
entitlement/approvals pursuant to the standard private development 
application/review/approval process. 

 
b. Amend, modify, or reject the foregoing option. 

 



 

 
 
 

 
 REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY ACTION: 
 
 a. Authorize staff and the Agency Counsel to negotiate an Exclusive 

Negotiation Agreement.  The purpose of the Exclusive Negotiation 
Agreement would be to allow the parties to negotiate the terms and 
conditions of a  Disposition and Development Agreement (DDA) with 
729 Twelfth Street Partners, LLC, and direct staff to advise the 729 
Twelfth Street Partners, LLC that it may, at its own risk and costs, 
seek a development entitlement from the Planning Commission. Sale 
of the City parking lot would be subject to the Redevelopment 
Agency and City Council approval of a redevelopment project and 
successful completion of the requirements of the DDA. The final 
Exclusive Negotiation Agreement will be subject to Redevelopment 
Agency approval. 

 
b. Amend, modify, or reject the foregoing option. 
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